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1. 
 Introduction

1.1 Purpose of RFP, Statement of Work

The purpose of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to solicit from bona fide bids, Collection Services for Exelon/ComEd’s uncollected revenues in its designated territory.  The current ComEd external collection process incorporates collection vendors servicing “Final Bill” and “Charge Off” accounts.  Final Bill vendors receive accounts 30-45 days after ComEd’s Final Bill process and services accounts for 55 days.  Charge Off vendors receive accounts 30 days after the Final Bill vendor’s collection process and services accounts for 12 months.  ComEd is researching the value to either enhance its current external collection process or move to a new external process outlined in Section 4.1 Account Information and Timeline.
2. Instructions to Collection Agent

“Collection Agent” shall mean those firms/vendors acting in the role of service provider when responding with a Proposal to this RFP.   “Proposal” shall mean the Collection Agent’s formal response indicating their proposed solution to Exelon/ComEd’s requirement which meets or exceeds the requirements of the RFP.  Subcontractors or subs can be defined as any firm under contract to the Collection Agent identified within the RFP response that is considered financially independent of the Collection Agent in any other business or accounting relationship.

This document shall not be construed as a request or authorization to perform work at Exelon’s expense.  Any work performed by a Collection Agent in connection with evaluating and responding to the RFP and, if selected, negotiating a definitive Agreement will be at the Collection Agent's own discretion and expense.  Exelon reserves the right to reject any and all Proposals at its absolute discretion.  Submission of a proposal constitutes acknowledgment that the Collection Agent has read and agrees to be bound by such terms.

The information in this document will enable the Collection Agent to formulate a Proposal which will meet the workload requirements as described in this RFP.  The numbers and volumes provided in this RFP are based upon the most recent data available and should serve as estimates to Collection Agent for pricing and response purposes.

This RFP does not constitute an offer by Exelon to enter into a contract, nor does any response to this RFP constitute an acceptance of an offer, nor does any response to this RFP bind Exelon in any way.  Additionally, any costs incurred in responding to this RFP shall be the responsibility of the Collection Agent.

2.1   Exelon Point of Contact

During this process, any questions or comments regarding this RFP must be sent to the designated point of contact.  For the purposes of this RFP, the designated point of contact is:

Thom Majka, Practice Leader
DebtNext Consulting Group

175 Montrose West Avenue, Suite 170

Copley, Ohio 44321

Fax: 216-803-2270

Email: tmajka@debtnext.com
All questions related to this RFP must be sent by Collection Agent via email to the above representative up until 5:00 EST on February 25, 2008.  Questions and answers will be given to all respondents in a timely manner.  In order to ensure this process remains fair for all participants, please be aware that contact with any other personnel within Exelon/ComEd regarding the RFP or an organization with which Exelon is associated may disqualify your firm from further consideration.

2.2    Proposal Confidentiality, Validity and Ownership
The information contained within this RFP is confidential and proprietary to Exelon, and is to be used by the Collection Agent solely for the purpose of responding to this RFP.

Proposals, and the pricing contained therein, shall remain valid for a minimum of 90 days from date of receipt by Exelon.  All Proposals (and related materials), once delivered, become the property of Exelon.

2.3
Submission Timeline

The following table outlines the key steps and milestones in the RFP process.  Please review this timeline and ensure that your firm can meet all listed deadlines.  Failure to meet a deadline is basis for Proposal disqualification.  

	RFP distributed
	2/15/08

	Intent to Respond, Mutual Non-Disclosure Agreement, and Collection Agent questions due
	2/25/08

	Exelon/ComEd distributes answers to all Collection Agents to all questions    
	3/4/08

	Completed bids due to Exelon/ComEd
	3/12/08

	Collection Agent Clarification & Negotiation

	3/12/08-3/21/08

	Exelon awards bid
                                                     
	4/2/08

	Agency transition complete
	TBD


3. Evaluation Process

3.1
Estimated Account Volume

Refer to section “7.Pricing” for estimated account placement volumes.

Account volume is also subject to the Collection Agent's ability to collect accounts closer to final bill date.  Please note that account volume is ultimately subject to prevailing business conditions and cannot be guaranteed by Exelon/ComEd.
3.2
Exelon Discretion

Exelon, at its discretion may:

· Select a Proposal other than the lowest priced, if Exelon determines, at its sole and absolute discretion that Exelon’s interests will best be served by doing so.  

· Seek clarification from any Collection Agent regarding Proposal information and may do so without notification to any other Collection Agent.

· Continue the review procedure until a Collection Agent is selected successfully or until Exelon chooses to reject all Proposals.  

· Accept any Proposal or alternate as submitted without negotiations.

· Select for negotiations only the overall best Proposal or negotiate all Proposals submitted which fall within a competitive range.

· Perform a complete financial review as well as an on-site investigation of any of the Collection Agent’s facilities to ensure it is capable of meeting the demands of Exelon and the needs identified in this RFP.

· Choose not award any contract(s) as a result of this RFP.

3.3
Evaluation Criteria

The primary basis for evaluation of this RFP will be the best overall value to Exelon/ComEd.  Exelon/ComEd expects the Collection Agent to work as a partner to continuously identify opportunities and to reduce all components of total cost for these services.  

All Proposals will be evaluated based on the criteria listed below.  The stated criteria are not necessarily in order of importance.  Exelon/ComEd reserves the right to weigh the evaluation criteria as it sees fit.

It is important that proposals be both thorough and concise.  Collection Agents, who fail to meet the minimum qualifications, shall not be considered for further evaluation or award.  It is imperative that your responses to the “Response Required” section of this RFP clearly indicate how your firm meets or exceeds Exelon/ComEd’s evaluation criteria.  Exelon will evaluate agencies on the following areas:

· Collection Agent Capabilities

· Commercial Considerations

· Value Added Solutions

· General Technology

· Compliance with Federal and State Regulations

· References

· Historical Performance

· Pricing

4. Collection Agent Scope of Services
If any functions, responsibilities or tasks not specifically described in this RFP are required for the proper performance and provision of the Services and are an inherent part of, or a necessary sub-part included within, the Services described above and elsewhere in this Agreement, such Services, functions, responsibilities and tasks shall be deemed to be implied by and included within the scope of the Services to the same extent and in the same manner as if specifically described in this Agreement.

4.1
Project Term

The term of the Collection Services Agreement made as part of this RFP shall be for a period of One (1) Year, renewable upon the mutual consent of the parties.  The provision of Services, as outlined in this RFP, shall be for a period not to exceed Nine (9) Months, subject to extension at Exelon’s sole discretion.  
4.2
Account Information and Timeline

Exelon/ComEd classifies uncollected revenue into two categories after the Final Bill date.  The first stage of collections, Primary Accounts, occurs when the account is 30-55 days old after Final Bill date.  Primary Accounts are approximately 30-55 days old, and Secondary Accounts are approximately 300 days old and older.  

Please refer to the following diagram for the detailed collections timeline and process.

	
	Exelon/ComEd Collections Timeline

	Day
	0         to       30
	30       (Approx. 9 Months to Recover)        300 
	300 and beyond

	
	
	PRIMARY
	SECONDARY

	
	Account is coded as Final Bill sent
	Account Re-Coded and sent to Primary Agencies
	Account Re-Coded and sent to Secondary Agencies


4.3
Single Point of Contact
The Single Point of Contact will be part of the Project Management team set in place by the Collection Agent to manage the details of the Services.  This person will be responsible for the following day-to-day functions:

· Serve as a single source of accountability for all matters related to any contract(s) with Exelon/ComEd;

· Manage the interaction between the Collection Agent and Exelon/ComEd;

· Help define and meet Critical Milestones, actions and projects identified as such in Schedules to be developed with the selected Collection Agent during negotiations, and implementation and planning meetings;

· Provide written project plans including, but not limited to, viable timelines with milestones and strategies for the maintenance supply Services to be provided; and, 

· Handle general customer service tasks, such as providing the status of an order, maintaining order history information about the account (district, department, office, etc.), and is available to answer general billing and ordering questions as well as perform other common customer service requests.

Please fill out the following section with your Point of Contact's information.
	Point of Contact Name
	

	Title
	

	Office Number
	

	Mobile or Pager Number
	

	Email
	


5. Collection Agent Scope of Services

The following are specific questions that must be addressed by the Collection Agent in its response to this RFP.  Answers to each question must be provided directly following the question in the space provided.  All questions must be answered to be in compliance with the evaluation process.  Failure to specifically answer the question may result in disqualification.  This RFP in its entirety, including Optional Pricing, is due in the DebtNext offices no later than 5:00 p.m. EST on March 12, 2008.
5.1
Collection Agency Overview
1.1.1.1. Provide a general company overview statement.

1.1.1.2. What do you feel your agency’s strengths are?  

1.1.1.3. Why do you feel these are your strengths?

1.1.1.4. Where is your headquarters located?

1.1.1.5. How many years have you been in business?

1.1.1.6. How many offices and/or call centers do you have in your company? 
1.1.1.7. How many incoming and outgoing telephone lines do you have at each call center?

1.1.1.8. [image: image1.png]


Where is your call centers located?
1.1.1.9. What is your supervisor to agent ratio?

1.1.1.10. Describe the types of businesses you handle.  (e.g. residential, commercial, utilities, telecom, cable, medical)

1.1.1.11. How many clients do you have?  On average, how many accounts are placed from your clients per month?

1.1.1.12. List the states in which you are currently licensed.

.

1.1.1.13. Describe your experience in, and recovery rates for, Illinois.
1.1.1.14. Do you collect for other utilities?  

1.1.1.15. Describe your experience in, and recovery rates for utilities.

1.1.1.16. Describe your company’s multilingual capabilities.  

1.1.1.17. Describe how your collectors are paid? Please explain any other incentives used to get the best possible recoveries on the accounts your clients places with you for collection. Does compensation impact your collector’s tenure? Please provide the average tenure of your collection staff and your attrition rate for collectors over the past 12 months.
1.1.1.18. How often does a collector review each account?

1.1.1.19. At what point do you report to Credit Reporting Agencies (CRA)?  

1.1.1.20. To which CRA’s do you currently report? 

1.1.1.21. How often do you report to CRA’s?

1.1.1.22. Describe the computer system environment, as it is available to your collectors.

1.1.1.23. Do you utilize a predictive dialer?

1.1.1.24. Describe the predictive dialer that you use: model, age, capabilities, and strengths.

1.1.1.25. Do you have an IT liaison appointed to assist clients with integration with your system?

1.1.1.26. Describe your computer backup system.

1.1.1.27. Describe your disaster recovery plan.

1.1.1.28. If a disaster occurred, what is your time commitment to be back in service and operating?

1.1.1.29. After a disaster, and in the event you cannot meet your commitment to be back in service and operating within the specified time frame above, how and when will you send files back to ComEd?

1.1.1.30. In what states are your attorney’s licensed to practice?

1.1.1.31. Describe any event where the agency/attorney has been or is currently being investigated or disciplined by any regulatory agency.

1.1.1.32. If selected, vendor may be required to provide copies of relevant certificates and all state licenses.

1.1.1.33. Describe other services, if any, that you provide.

1.1.1.34. Describe any functionality that substantially differentiates your company and solution from competitive offerings.

Performance/Quantity

	
	To complete the Performance/Quantity spreadsheet tables, enter the amount or percent where applicable:
	Amount
	Percent
	Reference Document Section

	Req. No.
	Requirement
	
	
	

	
	What is your recovery rate for Primary commercial accounts?
	
	
	

	
	What is your recovery rate for Secondary commercial accounts?
	
	
	

	
	What is your recovery rate for Tertiary commercial Accounts?
	
	
	

	
	What is your recovery amount for Legal commercial Accounts?
	
	
	

	
	What is your recovery rate for other commercial accounts not previously listed?
	
	
	

	
	What is the number of accounts necessary to dedicate a full-time collector to a specific client?
	
	
	

	
	What is your recovery rate for Primary residential accounts?
	
	
	

	
	What is your recovery rate for Secondary residential accounts?
	
	
	

	
	What is your recovery rate for Tertiary residential Accounts?
	
	
	

	
	What is your recovery amount for Legal residential Accounts?
	
	
	


5.2
Collection Agency Process Information
Collection Process

1.1.1.35. Describe and diagram (flowchart) your normal campaign process for collections.

Outbound Calls

1.1.1.36. Describe how/when collection phone calls are generated. 

1.1.1.37. Describe how scripts are reviewed and approved prior to calling the customer.

1.1.1.38. Describe any functionality that substantially differentiates your company and solution from competitive offerings relative to outbound calls.

Inbound Calls

1.1.1.39. Describe how incoming calls are identified and handled.
1.1.1.40. Describe how scripts are reviewed and approved.

1.1.1.41. Describe any functionality that substantially differentiates your company and solution from competitive offerings relative to inbound calls.

Correspondence

1.1.1.42. Describe how/when collection letters are generated. 

1.1.1.43. Describe how letters are reviewed and approved prior to sending to the customer.

1.1.1.44. Describe any functionality that substantially differentiates your company and solution from competitive offerings relative to correspondence.

   Quality
1.1.1.45. Describe the process and schedule for monitoring accounts by supervisors.

1.1.1.46. Describe your escalation process.  

1.1.1.47. What are your direct measures of quality (DMOQ)?

1.1.1.48. Describe any functionality that substantially differentiates your company and solution from competitive offerings relative to quality.

Customer Payment Arrangements
1.1.1.49. What are your current payment arrangement procedures?

1.1.1.50. Describe the basic criteria for accepting payment arrangements from a customer.

1.1.1.51. What is the maximum allowable payout period?

1.1.1.52. Describe the process of dealing with an account if a payment arrangement is broken.  When would phone contact be attempted?

1.1.1.53. Describe any suggested settlement parameters that you feel may be in the best interest of ComEd.  Do you have any current client case studies that can be shared to validate your suggested settlement parameters?

1.1.1.54. Describe your process of accepting automated payments via Pay-by-Web and Pay-by-Phone (IVR) systems.  Does your system allow access for our customers to pay their accounts 24/7?

1.1.1.55. Do you add any administration or convenience fee(s) on payments accepted through automated Pay-by-Web and Pay-by-Phone (IVR) systems?

1.1.1.56. If so, are these fees collected for any current utility customers?

Legal Accounts

1.1.1.57. Describe the criteria for an account to become a legal.

1.1.1.58. Describe your process and actions taken before suing a client.

1.1.1.59. Describe which assets you look for when processing legal accounts.

1.1.1.60. Describe the sources used for checking assets. 

1.1.1.61. How often do you obtain status report from the attorneys?

1.1.1.62. Describe any functionality that substantially differentiates your company and solution from competitive offerings relative to legal accounts.

Placements

1.1.1.63. By what method can accounts be placed with your agency?

1.1.1.64. Describe your process for acknowledging the receipt of client files by number of accounts, amounts and type of accounts.  

Returns
1.1.1.65. Describe your procedures when a client requests a recall of accounts.

1.1.1.66. Describe how quickly you can react to the client’s request for recall.

1.1.1.67. Describe how and when you would deem an account uncollectible.

1.1.1.68. How often do you purge files?

Auditing

1.1.1.69. Describe the process for allowing clients to perform remote audits.  

1.1.1.70. Would your agency accept a management fee to be paid to ComEd of no more than 1.5% of the monthly gross dollars you collect to administer its monthly agency management process?

1.1.1.71. What software system/platform and dialer system is used for collections?

Reporting and Measurement
Statements:

1.1.1.72. Describe your month end reporting.  

1.1.1.73. Describe your reports on uncollectible returns.

1.1.1.74. Describe other types of reports that you produce.

1.1.1.75. Describe any functionality that substantially differentiates your company and solution from competitive offerings relative to statements.

Functionality/Compliance

	
	To complete the Functionality/Compliance spreadsheet tables, check the appropriate boxes for each requirement (do not enter dollar amounts for price):
	
	NO
	YES
	Reference Document Section

	Req. No.
	Requirement
	
	
	

	
	Monthly debtor status: Can you manually produce a report showing alphabetically or numerically - with client account number, all placements and a description of current status?
	
	
	
	

	
	Monthly debtor status: Can you electronically produce a report showing alphabetically or numerically - with client account number, all placements and a description of current status?
	
	
	
	

	
	Do you keep reports on uncollectible returns?
	
	
	
	

	
	Are your reports on uncollectible returns cumulative by month?
	
	
	
	

	
	Are you able to differentiate, for reporting purposes, by product or service?
	
	
	
	

	
	Are you able to differentiate, for reporting purposes, by regulated and non regulated?
	
	
	
	

	
	Are you able to differentiate, for reporting purposes, by commercial or residential?
	
	
	
	


Information/Questions
1.1.1.76
Describe your collection system reporting capabilities.  

1.1.1.77
Describe how reports are defined.

1.1.1.78
List and provide a brief description of all standard reports.

1.1.1.79
Describe how ComEd would access reporting information.

1.1.1.80
Describe the mechanism/software used to design custom reports.

1.1.1.81
Do you use a third-party report generator package?  If so, what is it?

1.1.1.82
Describe your capability to generate data driven graphics.

1.1.1.83
Describe your file import/export capabilities. 

1.1.1.84
Describe your exception reporting. 

1.1.1.85
Describe any functionality that substantially differentiates your company and solution from competitive offerings relative to reporting. 

Functionality/Compliance

	
	To complete the Functionality/Compliance spreadsheet tables, check the appropriate boxes for each requirement (do not enter dollar amounts for price):
	
	No
	YES
	Reference Document Section

	Req. No.
	Requirement
	
	
	

	
	Does the company have a reporting capability that provides the ability to easily extract information for data analysis?
	
	
	
	

	
	Can historical reports showing trends and changes be generated by your company?  
	
	
	
	

	
	Can the reporting provide accurate audit trails?
	
	
	
	

	
	Does the reporting system allow the user to create and generate/run user-defined reports on demand?
	
	
	
	

	
	Are the report outputs transmittable via e-mail?
	
	
	
	

	
	Are reports scheduled to run daily at certain times?
	
	
	
	

	
	Do you have the ability to create ad hoc reports?
	
	
	
	

	
	Do you create pre-defined reports?
	
	
	
	

	
	Does the collection agency support/provide daily reports?
	
	
	
	

	
	Does the collection agency support/provide weekly reports?
	
	
	
	

	
	Does the collection agency support/provide monthly reports?
	
	
	
	

	
	Does the collection agency support/provide annual reports?
	
	
	
	


 Other

1.1.1.86 Describe and name any associations you are affiliated with or are a member of.   

Performance/Quantity

	
	To complete the Performance/Quantity spreadsheet tables, enter the amount or percent where applicable:
	Amount
	Percent
	Reference Document Section

	Req. No.
	Requirement
	
	
	

	
	Number of business handled and percentage to total:
	
	
	

	
	Commercial
	
	
	

	
	Residential
	
	
	

	
	Utilities - commercial
	
	
	

	
	Utilities - residential
	
	
	

	
	Electric - commercial
	
	
	

	
	Electric - residential
	
	
	

	
	Gas – commercial
	
	
	

	
	Gas – residential
	
	
	

	
	NSF Checks - commercial
	
	
	

	
	NSF Checks - residential
	
	
	

	
	Type of placement and percentage to total:
	
	
	

	
	Primary
	
	
	

	
	Secondary
	
	
	

	
	Tertiary
	
	
	

	
	Early out
	
	
	

	
	Bankruptcy
	
	
	

	
	Legal
	
	
	


Insurance, Bonding and Licensing
Describe nature and extent of insurance coverage for the following:

General Liability:

1.1.1.87 Errors and Omissions:

1.1.1.88 Surety Bond:

1.1.1.89 Employee Dishonesty:

Collection Agency Requirements

Requirements

Vendor will be required to upload each file into their collection system within 24 hours of receipt. 

Vendors will be required to work accounts according to a jointly defined collection matrix of letters and telephone calls.  After placement, the vendor will have a period of 9 months to recover the revenue.  At the end of that period, those accounts not collected may be recalled and forwarded to another vendor as a second or subsequent placement, sold, or closed out as uncollectible.

ComEd requires collection activity to be conducted according to jointly-defined service matrices, with the activities listed below representing a minimum effort. ComEd expects the initial contact to occur within the first 3 business days.

Account Balances Less Than $100

At least one written demand and one telephone attempt will be conducted within the first 30 days.

In the event a response is received within the first thirty (30) days to either the written or telephone demand, normal recovery processes including additional telephone attempts and/or letters, will continue until recovery or resolution.

In the event a response is not received within the first thirty (30) days to either the written or telephone demand, collection activity may cease and those accounts may be marked closed and return to ComEd/PECO. Reason codes will be used to identify the reasons for closure (e.g. returned mail, phone interrupt/disconnect).

* Describe any suggested enhancements that your agency can add to the above collection treatment process.

 Account Balances between $100 and $500

On all account balances between $100 and $500, a minimum of two written and three telephone demands will be made within the first 30 days or until a response is received, whichever comes first.

In the event, a response is received to either the written or telephone demand, normal recovery processes, including additional telephone attempts and/or letters, will continue until recovery or resolution.

In the event, a response is not received from either the written or telephone demands over a period of not less than thirty (30) days and not more than sixty (60) days, the account will be reviewed for further collection activity.  If the review indicates further activities are not expected to yield results, these accounts may be marked closed and returned to ComEd. Reason codes will be used to identify the reasons for closure (e.g. returned mail, phone interrupt/disconnect).

* Describe any suggested enhancements that your agency can add to the above collection treatment process.

 Account Balances above $500 

On all account balances over $500, a minimum of two written and four telephone demands will be made within the first 30 days or until a response is received, whichever comes first.

In the event a response is received to either the written or telephone demand, normal recovery processes, including additional telephone attempts and/or letters, will continue until recovery or resolution.

In the event a response is not received from either the written or telephone demands over a period of not less than thirty (30) days and not more than sixty (60) days, the account will be reviewed for further collection activity, including escalation to legal.  If the review indicates further activities are not expected to yield results, these accounts may be marked closed and returned to ComEd. Reason codes will be used to identify the reasons for closure (e.g. returned mail, phone interrupt/disconnect).

* Describe any suggested enhancements that your agency can add to the above collection treatment process.

ComEd will review and approve all policies, procedures, and calling scripts that are to be used in the collection of its accounts.  Vendor will not implement any changes to policies, procedures and calling scripts until those changes are reviewed and approved by ComEd.

Any account that the vendor recommends for legal action or forwarding will require authorization by ComEd before action is taken.  All fees and costs related to legal action will be agreed upon before legal placement.  (Section 7 pricing structure)

ComEd is requiring that all agencies selected have WEB- based solutions to allow ComEd to view and access ComEd accounts.  The following are some of the functions to be deployed as WEB applications:

1) Management monitoring

2) Reporting and statistics

All reports will be broken down by State, Commercial/Residential and placement type (e.g. Primary, Secondary placements, Damage Claims, Miscellaneous receivables, etc.).  Those files will be transmitted electronically in a comma-delimited format.  Reports shall include, but not be limited to:

· Daily cash file reports

· Daily collection reports (productivity)

· Daily first-placement reports

· Daily second-placement reports

· Daily call reports

· Daily cash-collected reports

· Daily exception reports

· Daily recall reports

· Monthly Reconciliation reports

· ad hoc reporting as necessary

· Closed Account reporting

· Monthly summation report(s)

Describe how you insure confidentiality for file transmissions.

Describe all certifications to be in compliance with ISO17799, SAS70 TYPE II data security standards in regards to protecting customer data.

Describe how you insure data integrity with file transmissions.

Describe how you authentication the identity of the sender and recipient for file transfers.

Vendor will provide ComEd:

· Web-based access to view its accounts

· Remote access to monitor the telephone calls to ComEd’s accounts

·  With a working space when conducting onsite visits, whether scheduled or unannounced
Vendor is required to back up ComEd accounts daily and store the backups at an offsite location each operating day.

Vendor will be required to maintain records (e.g. contact notes, correspondence - received or sent, copies of all payments) in paper or electronic format as they currently exist and files for a period of at least 5 years for all collection activities conducted on behalf of ComEd.  ComEd will notify agency if a time extension greater than 5 years is necessary.  When the agency relationship is terminated, records and files less than 5 years old or otherwise required to be retained will be returned to ComEd.

Due to our region's ethnic diversity, ComEd requires that the vendors have bi-lingual personnel to perform all aspects of the collection activities (inbound and outbound calls and correspondence) in Spanish and English.  Spanish is a required language for our present customer base.  Additional languages may be needed if the ethnic make-up changes.  

Vendor will maintain the following as minimum collection hours:

· Monday through Friday 8:00AM – 8:00PM Central Time

· Saturday 9:00AM – 1:00PM Central time
   Vendor will maintain the proper licensing.

Vendor will maintain insurance according to the following requirements:

· Commercial and General Liability $1Million

· Errors and Omissions Liability $1 Million

· Other as appropriate or required

Vendor will have and maintain the following bonding:

· Cash

· Dishonesty and mysterious disappearance $100,000

· Other as appropriate

Vendor will, in a timely manner, institute any changes that ComEd may require in the collection of its accounts, whether or not such changes are mandated by governmental regulations.

At the end of each month, the vendor will render to ComEd, within 5 business days, a correct invoice for all billable activities that occurred the previous month. 

   Vendor will transfer all amounts collected via ACH to ComEd’s bank each business day.

Vendor will report to credit reporting agencies designated by ComEd on at least a monthly basis.

Vendor will provide letters to account holders as required/requested by ComEd.

ComEd will require the vendor to offer a 10-day free demand period for all accounts placed.  ComEd will offer a 10-day free demand period for all accounts recalled from vendor.

Vendor will immediately report any material changes to their business that might adversely affect vendor’s performance of its duties for ComEd.

Describe your process when you receive a customer complaint against a collector handling an account for your existing clients. What investigative steps are taken and disciplinary procedures are used in your process?

Payment Acceptance

1.1.1.90 Vendor is required to the support at least the following payment options:

· Checks

· Credit Cards

· Debit Cards

· ACH

· Online payment (e.g. Easy Pay, Quick Pay)

Vendor is required to preserve the confidentiality of both ComEd and account information except as otherwise required herein.

6. Corporate Information

Provide General Company Overview Statement

	Name, address, phone, Web site of responding company
	

	Name, address, phone, Web site of parent company
	

	Corporate mission statement and customer service philosophy
	

	Length of time in business of collecting
	

	Total number of staff, number of customer support staff, number of technical support staff
	

	Previous experience with investor owned utilities
	

	Bonding Insurance (limits, incidents)
Liability Insurance (limits, incidents)

Contract Termination and Litigation
	


If the vendor has had a contract terminated for convenience, nonperformance, non-allocation of funds, default, or any other reason, which termination occurred before completion of the contract, during the past two years, describe fully all such terminations.  Present the vendor's position on the matter.

If the vendor has experienced no such terminations in the past five years, declare so in the space provided. 
Is your agency currently involved in any lawsuits? If so, please provide details and status of all.
 Financial Statement

Provide company financial statement.  Compliance with this request is mandatory.  If information is not public, it may be furnished under a non-disclosure agreement.  

Deliverable

For each requirement listed in Sections 4 and 5 as part of your response, indicate either your full compliance with the requirement or that you are taking exception to that requirement.  If you are taking exception to a requirement but are offering an alternative, describe fully, the alternative proposed and discuss why the proposed alternative is equivalent or superior in results to the requirement.

References
Using the tables below, provide at least 3 clients who have contracted and implemented the proposed agency services in the last four years.  Repeat the procedure for each vendor named in the proposal.  Create additional tables as needed.

	Vendor Name
	

	Customer/Client Name
	

	Reference Name
	

	Title
	

	Phone Number
	

	Mailing Address
	

	Fax Number
	

	Customer Type 
	Customer Size
	Client since?
	Placement type?
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


	Vendor Name
	

	Customer/Client Name
	

	Reference Name
	

	Title
	

	Phone Number
	

	Mailing Address
	

	Fax Number
	

	Customer Type 
	Customer Size
	Client since?
	Placement Type?
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


	Vendor Name
	

	Customer/Client Name
	

	Reference Name
	

	Title
	

	Phone Number
	

	Mailing Address
	

	Fax Number
	

	Customer Type 
	Customer Size
	Client Since?
	Placement Type?
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


	Vendor Name
	

	Customer/Client Name
	

	Reference Name
	

	Title
	

	Phone Number
	

	Mailing Address
	

	Fax Number
	

	Customer Type 
	Customer Size
	Client since?
	Placement type?
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


7. Pricing

Please provide a complete pricing proposal to include the residential and commercial categories as outlined for ComEd’s current external collection process.

“Final Bill”, accounts received 30-45 days after ComEd’s Final Bill and 55 days servicing timeline.
· 6,000 referrals at 2,000,000 per month (Residential)

· 300 referrals at 400,000 per month (Commercial)

“Charge Off”, accounts received 30 days after “Final Bill” and 12 month servicing timeline.

· 4,000 referrals at 1,250,000 per month (Residential)

· 200 referrals at 275,000 per month (Commercial)

2. 
Please provide a complete pricing proposal to include the residential, commercial and legal categories as outlined in 4.1   Account Information and Timeline

· Primary Account  Referrals for Residential Accounts with fee pricing based on an average of:

· 3,000 referrals at 1,000,000 per month

· Primary Account Referrals for Commercial Accounts with fee pricing based on an average of:

· 500 referrals at 800,000 per month

· Please describe your legal rates on accounts that you would refer to your attorney network:

· Contingent fee schedule

· Court cost, non-contingent suit fee, other fees

8. Revenue Projections

Please provide your revenue projections over a 12 month period based on the estimated number and dollar referrals stated in Section 7.
  ComEd current external collection process
“Final Bill”, accounts received 30-45days after ComEd’s final bill and 55 days servicing timeline.

· 6,000 referrals at 2,000,000 per month (Residential)

· 300 referrals at 400,000 per month (Commercial)

“Charge Off”, accounts received 30 days after “Final Bill” and 12 month servicing timeline.

· 4,000 referrals at 1,250,000 per month (Residential)

· 200 referrals at 275,000 per month (Commercial)

    ComEd enhanced external collection process

· Primary Account  Referrals for Residential Accounts with fee pricing based on an average of:

· 3,000 referrals at 1,000,000 per month

· Primary Account Referrals for Commercial Accounts with fee pricing based on an average of:

· 500 referrals at 800,000 per month

· Please describe your legal rates on accounts that you would refer to your attorney network:

· Contingent fee schedule

· Court cost, non-contingent suit fee, other fees

9. Collection Agent Scope of Services

Any exceptions or deviations from the requirements, Terms and Conditions, or anything included in this RFP that cannot be satisfied by the Collection Agent, must be clearly identified and noted here by referring to the Section # Subsection # and clearly stating the item that cannot be met. Deviations to the Terms and Conditions set forth in this RFP (including additional, inconsistent, conflicting or alternative terms) may render the bid non-responsive and may result in rejection. 

Only those extraneous terms that meet all the following requirements will be considered as having been submitted as part of the Proposal:

· Each proposed extraneous term (addition, counter-offer, deviation or modification) must be specifically enumerated in writing, which is not part of a pre-printed form.

· The writing must identify the particular term to which the Collection Agent objects or proposes to modify by inclusion of the extraneous term.

· The Collection Agent shall enumerate the proposed addition, counter-offer, modification or deviation from the bid Proposal, and the reasons therefore.

· Extraneous term(s) submitted on standard, pre-printed forms (including but not limited to: product literature, order forms, license agreements, Contracts or other documents), whether or not deemed "material", which are attached or referenced with submissions and which do not meet the above requirements will not be considered part of the bid or resulting Contract, but rather will be deemed to have been included for informational or promotional purposes only. 

· Acceptance and/or processing of the bid Proposal shall not constitute written acceptance of extraneous term(s) or a waiver of Exelon's rights set forth above.  Failure to object to any terms set forth in this RFP at or prior to the submittal of a proposal shall not be considered.

Appendix A:  Notice of Intent to Respond

All Collection Agents are required to complete following form, indicating whether or not they intend to participate in Exelon/ComEd’s RFP process, no later than 5:00 p.m. EST on February 25, 2008  

In addition return two signed copies of the attached Mutual Non-Disclosure Agreement.
Collections Services

Email To:
Thom Majka
Practice Leader
Exelon Corporation/DebtNext Consulting Group


tmajka@debtnext.com
	Company Name:
	

	Company Address:
	

	Contact Name:
	

	City, State, Zip:
	

	Phone #:
	

	Fax #:
	

	Email Address:
	


All Collection Agents participating in the RFP process agree to the terms outlined in the RFP.  Collection Agent further acknowledges that Exelon/ComEd in no way obligated to purchase any good or services until such time as contracts and agreements are negotiated in detail and purchase orders or contracts are issued, if indeed your firm is chosen for future consideration in the selection process.

Please indicate whether or not you intend to submit a proposal to the RFP:

We intend to submit a proposal to RFP #CMD-1182008 no later than 03/12/2008:

	YES
	
	NO
	


Appendix B:  Exelon’s Mutual Non-Disclosure Agreement

Enclosed
Appendix C: Exelon’s Terms and Conditions

Enclosed
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